ase plation, Transcript, mall Exhibits, Etc.



Page 1

NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

EXAMINER HEARING - ELVIS A. UTZ

SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

REGISTER

HEARING DATE AUGUST 30, 1961 TIME: 9 A.M. **REPRESENTING:** LOCATION: Pet, Verter Jon the Ze OCC P.J.M. Juat Farmin tere (14) 0.5.6.5 Shiell Farmington R.R. ROBISON for angles Shell here & Kill 1. A. Coursey Shall Farmington Shell A. yope Roswell B.T.Malladi, - Ja Austras On Hous Ton Shell Oil Cr. Roswell Shell O'll Cr. R. I Exany I Hour Abrillo Farmington Warren ng marshell Shell Oil Co. Farmingth WWWyak U.D.D.D. Midland TEXACO Inc. C. R. Black Sunral Mis-Continuit Tulsa. William RLoar L. P. Mp. T. Sa. C. D. L 1) 2 Foster Monce Magandent Reswell, N.M.

,

NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION EXAMINER HEARING - ELVIS A. UTZ 2

Page

SANTA	FE	NE	MEXICO

REGISTER

HEARING DATE AUGUST 30, 1961 TIME: 9 A.M. REPRESENTING: LOCATION: NAME : Ralph 7 Gray Hudson & Hadson artend ason Willahi + Hor Sate Fr. RRMARMOR SINCLAIR MIDLAND TRENTS Frank Darden Newmont Oil Co H. Worth, Teyan

3 Page

NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

EXAMINER HEARING - ELVIS A. UTZ

, NEW MEXICO SANTA FE

REGISTER

HEARING DATE AUGUST 30, 1961

TIME: 9 A.M.

NAME :	REPRESENTING:	LOCATION:
- 49 		
		• •
		•

	BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO AUGUST 30, 1961			
LEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.	<pre>IN THE MATTER OF: Application of Shell Oil Company for a pilot water flood project in the Townsend-Wolfcamp Pool, Lea County, New Mexico. Applicant, in the above-styled cause, seeks permission to : Case 2359 institute a pilot water flood project in the Townsend-Wolfcamp Pool with water injection initially to be through the Texas Pacific Coal & Oil Company State "J" Well No. 2, located in the NE/4 SW/4 of Section 10, Township 16 South, Range 35 East, Lea County, New Mexico.</pre>			
REF	Elvis A. Utz, Examiner			
S.R. J	EXAMINER HEARING			
IEII	MR. UTZ: Case 2359.			
Y-V	MR. MORRIS: Application of Shell Oil Company for a			
VLE	pilot water flood project.			
DEARNI 44 mexico	MR. SETH: Oliver Seth appearing for the Applicant. We			
DE	have one witness, Mr. Utz.			
DE albuquerque, new	MR. UTZ: Are there other appearances in this case?			
ALBUQ.	You may proceed and be sworn.			
	(Witness sworn.)			
	ROY LEE ESSARY,			
	called as a witness herein, having been first duly sworn on oath,			
	was examined and testified as follows:			

PAGE 2 DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SETH: Q Would you state your name, please. Roy Lee Essary. A PHONE CH 3-6691 By whom are you employed, Mr. Essary? Q Shell Oil Company. A How long have you been employed by Shell, and in what Q capacity? I have been employed 7 years by Shell, the first year A on the training program, the next 2 years well setting and general exploitation field operation, 2 years of general well stimulation, and the last 2 years in the reservoir engineering section. The past 6 years of this have been spent in Southeast New Mexico. What is your educational background? 0 I graduated from the Colorado School of Mining in 1954, Α a degree in Petroleum Engineering. Are you generally familiar with this Townsend-Wolfcamp Q Area? NEW MEXICO Yes, sir. A Have you had previous experience with any similar field Q ALBUQUERQUE, in that part of the state? Yes, sir; Kelmat-Wolfcamp Field, which is quite similar, A and located on a trend with this, approximately 10 miles to the west.

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

Q Are you on that Kelmat Committee?

PAGE 3 Yes, sir; I am on that Committee. A MR. SETH: May he testify? MR. UTZ: Yes. He is qualified to testify. Would you spell your name, please? 1993-E HD SNOM THE WITNESS: E-s-s-a-r-y. DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc. Q (By Mr. Seth) Would you state, please, to the Commission, what is the general purpose of Shell's Application in this case. Our general purpose is to institute on an experimental A basis a pilot water flood to determine response to water injection in the Townsend-Wolfcamp Reservoir. Q Do you have any other preliminary statements you want to make, Mr. Essary? No, sir. A Do you have a plat showing the location of the proposed Q pilot program? Yes, sir. A This Exhibit has been marked Shell Oil Company Exhibit 1 Q Would you state, please, what this Exhibit shows? MEXI A This Exhibit is a structural contour map on the W-5 NEV marker within the Wolfcamp formation. It shows well locations, ALBUQUERQUE, leasehold owners, and the performance of the wells as of June 30, 1961. Q How is the proposed pilot flood area shown on this Exhibit?

The proposed pilot flood is outlined with hatchered

A

P

PAGE L

· 7	-	· · ·	-	
- 1	1	ne	Э.	

3-6691

Đ

Q

What is the legal description of the water flood.

A The test area consists of Section 10, Township 16 South, Range 35 East.

Q Now, would you give us a little bit of background on this well? Before we leave this Exhibit, I notice there is a line generally Northeast Southwest through the Area. What does that connotate?

A The study of the Engineering Committee. The Engineering Committee in their study came to the conclusion that this field should be divided into two portions as far as performance is concerned. Even though there is a common reservoir, there is a change in lathology such that the performance of the North Area is substantially different from the performance in the South Area. This has been determined by pressure build up surveys and well performance. The South Area has good inter-well communication, and the North Area, the inter-well communication is quite poor.

Q Now, you spoke of the Engineering Committee. What is the formal title of this Committee?

A The Townsend-Wolfcamp Engineering Committee.
Q Made up of representatives of operators in the field?
A Of all operators in the field; yes, sir.
Q Give us a little background on the field.

A The Townsend-Wolfcamp Field is located approximately 5 miles west of Lovington, New Mexico, in Central Lea County,



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

NEW MEXICO

ALBUQUERQUE,

-

discovered in May, 1952, by Wilshire Oil Company, Townsend's No. 1. The field produces from a fossiliferous crystalline limestone basic at the depth of 10,400 to 10,700 feet. There was no original gasoil contact, and no oil-water contact has been evident at Townsend. The reservoir is a dissolved gas dry reservoir with an average weighted porosity of 8.8 per cent. Permeability ranges from less than one tenth of a millidarcie to greater than 2,000 millidarcies. Original reservoir pressure was 259 pounds. Saturation occurred at 3,583 pounds. The present reservoir pressure is approximately 400 pounds.

Q Do you have any data on reserves?

A Yes, sir.

Đ

Inc.

SERVICE.

REPORTING

DEARNLEY-MEIER

NEW MEXICO

ALBUQUERQUE,

Q Just in general terms, if you like.

A I have an exhibit, here, that I will present in just a moment, if I might.

Q Yes, sir; do that.

A Just one second. In October, 1958, the operators met and approved a formation of an Engineering Committee to evaluate the means and methods to increase ultimate recovery. The Committee determined the original oil in place by two methods: Volumetrics indicated the South Area to have some 27,860,000 stock tank barrels of oil, where the North Area had 10,800,000 stock tank barrels. Material balance confirmed the South Area essentially with the calculated original oil in place of 15,330,000 stock tank barrels. The Engineering Committee then decided to average



these two figures and use an original stock tank barrel in place in the South Area of 26.6 million barrels. The North Area, the pressure data was too inconclusive and sporadic to run a valid material balance. Their decision was to eliminate the North Area from the consideration for secondary recovery due to the impermeable nature of the reservoir.

I would like to present as Exhibit 2 --

Q You are referring to what has been marked Shell Oil Company Exhibit 2?

A Yes, sir.

Q What does that show?

A This shows -- I might mention something else. In the study of this field, the Engineering Committee omitted those wells north of Township 16 South as being rather scattered and did not pertain directly to the bulk of the work to be done.

Q But they are within the limits as defined by the Commission?

A Yes, sir; they are within the limits defined by the Commission but not as defined within the study.

Q Go ahead with Exhibit 2.

A Exhibit 2 shows the decline, approximate decline curve of from the beginning of the field to June, 1961. Two curves are shown, one, the total field performance, and the other consisting of the South Area. The South Area is also called the Fairway, as a localized nomenclature.



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

3-6691

5

Q Now, this indicates your per cent of primary completion, does it?

A This is shown by this. The present computive is 10,874,000 barrels of oil; accumulated reserves are one million, approximately 1,376,000 barrels of oil, for the resulting primary ultimate of some 12.25 million barrels of oil. These figures indicate that at present the field is approximately, the South Area, pardon me, is approximately 89 per cent depleted, primary recovery.

I would like to further present Exhibit 3, which shows the pressure performance of the South Area.

Q Now, referring to Exhibit 3. What does that show?
A Exhibit --

MR. UTZ: Let me ask a question on Exhibit 2. The total reserves as of 7-1-61 is covered by the figures 10,874,000?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. This is not an official approximation by the Committee. It is my personal estimate. The Committee finished the report some time ago, and I have brought it up to date.

MR. UTZ: Proceed.

MR. SETH: Please refer to Exhibit 3, and state what it shows.

A Exhibit 3 shows the reservoir pressure versus the cumulative oil produced, and shows for the most part the differential material balance calculations are verified by actual field



DEARNLEY-MEIER REFORTING SERVICE, Inc.

NEW MEX

ALBUQUERQUE,

3-6691

÷

2

performance. During the past few months, the actual measure of pressures are somewhat higher than those calculated by the differential balance.

How are the actual pressures taken? Q

The actual pressures were measured by bottom hole Α pressure bombs. As shown also, here, the extrapolation of the reservoir pressures indicate that the 12,250,000 barrels ultimate is a reasonable estimate for the South Area.

Q Do you have some data on the status of the wells at the present time?

Yes, sir. A

3-6691

Đ

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

NEW MEXICO

ALBUQUERQUE,

You have before you Exhibit 4, what does that show? Q

A Exhibit 4 presents the status of the wells at present in a tabular form by company.

Now, this is just in the study area, again, is it not? Q

Yes, sir; this is in the study area, but it does include A both the North and South Areas. I would like to point out that at present there are 57 wells producing in the South Area, out of atotal of 69 wells.

Now, in that first column, there, the figures in 0 parentheses, those were for the wells producing less than 200 barrels per month; is that right?

Yes, sir. These are based on an average decline in the A field wells that are producing 200 barrels or less per month, have a remaining life of one year or less. So the addition of the shut-



in wells and the wells in parentheses indicates that within approximately one year's time, we expect nearly one third of the wells in the South Area to be shut-in.

This also indicates the companies that are participating Û does it not?

Yes. sir. The asterisk-marked companies are those A participating in the pilot flood project. One company, Brunson & Laughlin, with the double asterisk, is within the pilot area. They are not participating as far as paying their equitable share of the project, but they have signed a side agreement where they agree to allow us to inject water, and they do not hold the operators liable for damage to this well caused by the injection of the water.

Now, do you have any other comments on Exhibit 4? Q A No, sir.

Do you have some data on decline? Q

Yes, The apparent recovery efficiency, based on the A predicted primary ultimate in the South Area and the estimated original oil in place is 46 per cent, which seems very high for this type reservoir. The primary efficiency by differential material balance to a 400 pound abandonment pressure was 40 per cent. This is also quite high for a depletion type reservoir. I wanted to make this point at this time. We will refer to it again.

The Committee, in their secondary recovery investigation



BNOH Imc. DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE,

CH 3-669

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

PAGE 9

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc. AIEUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

investigated pressure maintenance first due to shrinkage in the reservoir. However, the pressure at the time of the Committee's report was only 600 pounds, and the pressure maintenance would have only recovered an additional 500,000 barrels of oil at over 2,000,000 estimated cost. The only reasonable approach to secondary recovery in this field was water flooding. The residual oil saturation after primary depletion is calculated at 25.4 per cent. The residual oil saturation, after primary by differential material balance, is 28.6 per cent. We ran displacement tests on two plugs and one hole core. The residual oil saturation after flooding these cores to 99.9 per cent water cut was 47.7 per cent. This, of course, is unreasonably high, and the value could not be used. Normally, you would expect between 25 and 35 per cent residual oil saturation after flooding of reservoir of this type. If we assume a residual oil saturation after water flood of 30 per cent, our calculated values are less than this, and therefore, we would have no recovery by water flood.

As stated before, the estimated primary recovery efficiency appears quite high. This could be due to some factor such as the original oil in place being too low, the figure used being too low. For instance, oil draining into the reservoir from the North Area, insufficient net acre feet used in the calculations, too low porosity in the calculations, or too high a value of water saturation used in the calculations. So for purposes of evaluation, the Engineering Committee arbitrarily

P

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc. Albuquerque, new mexico increased the original in place by 20 per cent, resulting in 31.9 million barrels per day in the South Area. Utilizing this figure, they calculated the recovery efficiency to be 34 per cent, and the residual oil saturation after primary to be 32 per cent. Utilizing these data, they computed at the increased recovery by secondary methods with the conformance factor of 60 per cent, was 2.4 million stock tank barrels of oil, resulting in a profit of 75 per cent, or \$1,442,000 on a capital expenditure of \$1,931,000. Pay out would occur in three years. Total life of the project was seven years. They investigated two pilot areas. The cost on one pilot area, a regular five spot pilot area was \$319,000. The second regular five spot pool on the project that was investigated would cost \$208,000. They submitted this report to the Committee with the recommendation that the field be allowed to deplete through primary means. The Townsend Field Operators Committee met in August of 1960 to discuss the Engineering Committee report, and they decided that the report was acceptable. They decided further that a regular five spot water flood was not justified due to the calculations not warranting water flooding in this field and also the high cost of instituting a pilot flood. But, they further decided that the magnitude of oil remaining in the South Area after primary, that is some 10,000,000 stock tank barrels of oil, should warrant some effort toward evaluating the response of this reservoir to water injection. Therefore, they instructed the Engineering Committee to investigate the feasibilit



the capital expenditure requirements for a water injection project which could later be expanded to a full peripheral type flood.

۵ Why was this particular area selected over the others? A The Engineering Committee studied the field, and they selected Section 10, Township 17 South, Range 35 East for a test area for the following reasons: The pressure and GOR data indicated that this area should represent a fair average of present reservoir saturation conditions. The entire area is on common royalty acreage.

Is it all State? Q

A It is all State land. The net pay figures within the area are relatively uniform and not excessively thick. The generally low primary reserves in offset wells reduced problems of indemnification.

Will the proposed well fit in with the ultimate pattern Q of the peripheral flood if you go in that direction?

Yes, sir. The proposed injection well, which is now A temporarily abandoned, will fit into any future peripheral pattern Further, the status of the injection well chosen, that is being temporarily abandoned at present, eliminates immediate concern over forfeiture of production.

Q Now, in the preparation, have you prepared some crosssections of the proposed pilot area?

A Yes, sir.



Inc. Prone -DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE,

3-6691

3

MEXICO NEW AI.BUQUERQUE,

Q These cross-sections are indicated on Exhibit 1, are they not?

A Yes, sir. These cross-sections are indicated on Exhibit 1.

Q Will you refer, first, to Exhibit 5, and tell us, please, what this shows?

A Exhibit 5, which is a cross-section, A prime, is an East West cross-section through the pilot area. This shows Texas Pacific Coal & Oil Well State J No. 1, New Mexico State J 1, State J No. 2.

Q Superior Oil Company State J No. 26, what does it show, generally?

A This shows the porosity as indicated by microlog in the various wells. It shows the presently perforated intervals in those wells, and shows the status as of June 1961. Further, it shows in the injection well the proposed perforations to be instituted prior to the injection program in the injection well. As you notice here, the zone is overlaid by a shale wedge. This wedge disappears, as shown on Exhibit 1, just north of the middle of the test area.

Q East and West. It shows it to be fairly uniform?

A Yes, sir. The producing zone East and West is quite uniform.

MR. UTZ: That is the flow interval?

THE WITNESS: The net pay figures vary somewhat, however.



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

3-6691

5

	Q (By Mr. Seth) Is the net pay fairly uniform throughout			
	the test area?			
	A The net pay is fairly uniform throughout the test area;			
6691	yes, sir.			
PHONE CH 3-6691	Q Do you have a number North South cross-section?			
NOH4	A Yes.			
	Q This has been marked Exhibit 6. Would you tell us,			
	please, what that shows?			
*	A This is the North South cross-section through the test			
	area and through the injection well.			
	Q Is this B-B prime, as shown on Exhibit 1; is that right?			
-	A Yes, sir.			
	Q Go ahead.			
	A This shows the producing zone overlaid by the shale			
	wedge. As you notice, north of the Lea State A No. 4, the pro-			
	ducing zone becomes quite thick, and the shale wedge disappears.			
	This further shows that the immediate area of water injection is			
8	rather uniform and not excessively thick. Beyond the first north			
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO	line offset wells, the pay does become quite thick.			
UE, NE	Q Is there anything else on this exhibit you want to tell			
UQUERQ	me?			
ALB	A No, sir.			
	Q You are referring back to Exhibit 5 that included the			
	cross-section of the well where you anticipate the first response			
	A Yes, sir.			



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

ing.

ter e

. 5

÷,

Q We will cover that later.

A Yes, sir.

3-6691

PHONE CH

Inc.

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE,

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

Q Do you have an isopack of the area?

A (Indicating.)

Q This isopack has been marked Exhibit 7. Would you describe the details on it, please?

A Exhibit 7 is an isopack of the test area, and shows the relative uniformity of the net pay throughout the test area.

Q What are the figures opposite the well?

A The figures on the right hand side of the well are net pay figures as picked by the Engineering Committee.

Q What does this generally show with relation to your proposed tests?

A This shows that the net pay, even though varying throughout the area, is rather uniform, and there are no abrupt changes in net pay figures in the test area.

Q Would you anticipate a reasonably uniform flood pattern as a result of that?

A The flood that we anticipate instituting is only expected to affect the direct offset wells, and through these wells the uniformity is such that we expect a fairly uniform response.

Q Is there anything further about that isopack you want to discuss?

MR. UTZ: By "offset well", do you mean the No. 1 Well

directly east?

A No, sir. We expect in all directions, actually we expect response only in four wells through the length of time of this injection program. That is the east offset, the northeast offset, north offset, and the west offsetting wells.

Q (By Mr. Seth) Do you have a diagram of the completion of the proposed injection well?

A (Indicating.)

Q This has been marked Exhibit 8. What does this diagram show?

A Exhibit 8 is a schematic diagram showing the casing and cementing program of the proposed injection well Texas Pacific Coal & Oil State J No. 2. It further shows the work program that we intend to perform prior to instituting injection into this well. The existing perforations, the operator tells us, possibly are in communication with each other; and therefore, we propose to squeeze ll existing perforations and re-perforate only those zones that are indicated porous and permeable by well logs.

Q Give us a little detail on your preparatory work as far as cementing and casing?

Q How do you mean, sir?

Q That is shown on this Exhibit. Would you describe a little bit what procedures you are going to take before you feel the well is completed for injection purposes?

A As outlined in the work program, we intend to run two-



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

3-6691

Đ

inch tubing with packer, squeeze the existing perforations at 10,550 feet to 10,592 feet with 300 sacks of cement. We then will drill out the cement to a depth of 10,610 feet, and pressure test the casing. We will then spot 500 gallons, 10 per cent mud clean out agent on bottom, pull tubing, and perforate selected intervals opposite the Wolfcamp. Would you like those read into the minutes?

Q No.

A The selected intervals are shown on the Exhibit. We will then run tubing with the packer, displace this MCA to the formation. We will then swab back this acid load, set the packer at approximately 10,500 feet, and begin water injections.

Q Do you believe this method will adequately protect the shallower formations?

A Yes, sir. Originally this formation was cemented with 300 sacks of cement. No top of that cement was picked or estimated on the completion program, but an additional 300-sack cement squeeze should be sufficient to protect shallower formations.

Q Including any fresh water?

A The fresh water, of course, is covered by two strings of casing cemented to the surface. The 3 3/8-inch casing is set at 353 feet with cement circulating the surface. The 8 5/8-inch casing is set at 563 feet with cement circulating to the surface.

Q This is within the Lovington Water Basin?

A Yes, sir.





MR. UT2: These strings are presently in the well? THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. This is the condition as it exists today.

MR. UTZ: You will attempt to pressure test from 10,500 up --

THE WITNESS: To the surface; yes, sir.

Q (By Mr. Seth) Is there anything further on this diagram at this time?

A No, sir.

MR. UTZ: What type of packer do you intend to use on these?

THE WITNESS: That hadn't been specifically stated as such, but the District Engineer indicated that they would use a hook wall packer. Now, this well should take that water on packing throughout the entire injection program, no surface pressure whatsoever. Now, the packer, of course, will have inhibited water behind the tubing, and this, of course, will be sufficient to hold that packer in place. We did not intend to put a permanent packer in the well at this time.

MR. UTZ: Thank you.

Q (By Mr. Seth) Tell a little bit about your injection program, please.

A We hope to inject into the Wolfcamp formation through Texas Pacific Coal & Oil State J No. 3, approximately 100,000 barrels of water per day to a maximum of 500,000 barrels of water



CH 3-669

Inc.

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE,

in order to determine if an oil bank can be formed, and further to obtain data to estimate and verify fluid saturation data as we had it today. We anticipate response in the east offset in approximately 2 1/2 months with 45 barrels of water injected water break through. We allocate at three months with 90,000 barrels of water injected. The north offset State A No. 4, we expect response in 9 months with 270,000 barrels of water injected and water break through in 12 months, 350,000 barrels injected. Brunson & Laughlin Machris No. 32-10, the northeast offset to the injection well, we expect response in 11.51 with 350,000 barrels of water injected, and water break through in 14 1/2 months with 436,000 barrels injected. The last well to respond should be Texas Pacific Coal & Oil Company J No. 1. We expect this response 13 1/2 months with 405,000 barrels of water injected, and we do not expect water break through into this well. Of course, these calculations are based on some assumptions that of necessity had to be made.

3-6691

3

Inc. PHONE C

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE,

NEW MEXICO

ALBUQUERQUE

The present extent over life of the flood is 500,000 Q barrels as it stands now?

Yes, sir. The Engineering Committee has agreed that A if nothing responds within the 500,000 barrels injection program, then the field undoubtedly is not subject to water flood.

Now, what is your source of water that you plan to use? Q

Several sources of water were investigated. It was A decided to obtain saline water from the Santa Rosa Formation at an

PAGE 20 approximate depth of 1,600 feet for the pilot project. Several sources of this water were investigated, and it was finally decided to re-enter Humble State AL No. 1, through hole in the Northwest Quarter, Northwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 16 3-669) South, Range 35 East. 3 Inc. Q Is that shown on your Exhibit 1, there, as the source DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, well? Yes, sir. A It is to the southwest of the test pilot area; is it Q not? This is indicated on Exhibit 1-A in the South Area; yes, A sir. Approximately how far is it from the injection well? Q A 7,500 feet. MR. UTZ: What formation was it? THE WITNESS: Santa Rosa, sir. (By Mr. Seth) Do you have a log on that well? Q We have a log. A ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO Now, you are referring to Exhibit 9? Q Exhibit 9 is a radioactive log of the west offset to A the proposed source well. We do not have a log through this interval in the source well. As far as you can determine, though, this would be a Q typical log of that locality? Yes, sir. This sand is quite uniform throughout this A



area, and should fairly well represent the characteristics of the sand to be found in the source wells.

Q What does this show?

A This is presented to indicate the proposed source zone, the approximate depth, and the well --

Q This well produces the required quantity of water as near as we can tell now?

A As far as we can determine, we expect that it will be able to produce the required amount of water. This is based on the porosity indicated of some 25 per cent or greater, and the apparent cleanness of the sand, and the apparent thickness of the sand. We expect some 35 feet of net pay in the source well.

If the pilot flood is successful and you go to a 0 complete flood, there are other water sources that would be sufficient for that purpose?

A Yes, sir. There is some thought that this particular formation would not be able to provide water for the entire flood. If the flood is successful, there are other sources that will provide water for the full-scale flood.

0 Do you know how the source well was completed? A Yes, sir. We have Exhibit 10, which I now present, showing the present status of the source well.

Q Now, would you describe, briefly, what this shows? A This shows that at the present time in the source well we have 13 3/8 inch casing set at 440 feet with cement circulated



MEXICO NEW ALJUQUERQUE

PHONE Inc.

CH 3-6691

back to surface. We have 8 5/8 inch casing set at 4,638 feet with cement circulated back to surface. And, we have a portion of the 5 1/2 inch casing that has been shot off at 4,580 feet. This was cemented at 10,587 feet with 900 sacks. There is a cement plug covering the top of the 5 1/2 inch casing stub.

Will this completion method adequately protect the ۵ shallower formations?

Yes. sir. This, of course, would be a source well, and A' no pressure is to be put upon the casing. However, we will test the casing for leaks and so forth prior to instituting the completion program.

Is there anything further on Exhibit 10, there? 0 No, sir; unless there are questions. Å

Do you have anything further on the source well?

No, sir; not on the source well. A

Do you want to give the surface facilities on this Q thing?

(By Mr. Seth) Do you have a diagram of the surface

MR. UTZ: The 8 5/8 was circulated? THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO facilities?

0

Q

3-6691

5

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

Yes, sir. May I present that as Exhibit 11? A

Tell us what this Exhibit shows? Q

This is a schematic diagram of the surface facilities A to be placed at the source well location. It consists of the

500-barrel storage tank which will have a propane gas blanket, the centrifugal pump which has a capacity of approximately 1,200 barrels per day at 50 pounds per square inch pressure, a water meter and the beginning of the line pipe. This is 2 1/2inch LPO pipe or actual used tubing, well tubing. 50 pounds per square inch is the pressure that should be required to provide 1,000 barrels per day to the injection well at zero injection pressure.

MR. UTZ: That was 50 PSI?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. As previously stated, we expect that this well will take this entire amount of water with no surface pressure required, at the rates intended.

Q (By Mr. Seth) Do you have anything further on 11 which you would like to discuss?

A No, sir.

Q In your opinion, will these facilities in the plan provide a reasonable and adequate test of the water flood possibilities for this area?

A The proposed pilot will provide the information that the Engineering Committee will require for their further evaluation. As I stated previously, this is to determine if an oil bank can be formed by the injection well. The operators unanimously agreed that the probability of success, based on calculations, is not too great; but they are willing to spend some \$60,000.00 to verify the calculations that have been made.



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

MEXICO

NEW

Al.BUQUERQUI

3-6691

Đ

PHONE

Are you presenting this data as a representative of the Q operating group ---Yes, sir. A -- that is going to operate the test; is that correct? ۵ 3-6691 Yes, sir; that is correct. A 5 MR. SETH: I believe that is all. Do you have anything Inc. further, other comments you would like to make? THE WITNESS: No, sir. MR. SETH: We would like to offer Exhibits 1 through 11, Mr. Utz. Have these been prepared under your direction and supervision. THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. MR. UTZ: Without objection, Exhibits 1 through 11 will be entered into the record in this case. (Whereupon Applicant's Exhibits 1 through 11 received in evidence.) MR. SETH: That is all of our direct case. NEW MEXICO MR. UTZ: Mr. Essary, do you consider that this flood should come under Rule 701 of the Commission? ALBUQUERQUE THE WITNESS: Yes; sir. MR. UTZ: Have allowables in accordance with that Rule -THE WITNESS: As far as allowables; no, sir, I do not. This flood, the response we can not formally predict response in any well. We anticipate response, and under the terms of the

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE,

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

3-6691

HONE CH

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

operating agreement each operator will be responsible for his own allowable. We do not expect any response that will approach top allowable producing status in any of the wells. The wells in this area, as you might might know, are making some 10 barrels per day or less, except for 32-10, and this is just one month's production after installation of gas lift after having been shut in for some time. So present capacity of these wells would be 10 barrels per day. Top allowable is some up, and I do not expect that much in any one well, and the operators, themselves, when they obtain response, will then go to the Commission and request increased allowables.

Q Which area do you consider to be the best reservoir? The South Area?

A Yes, sir. The South Area is, definitely.

Q The permeability?

A The permeability is quite good. Pressure performance throughout the field is quite uniform. Pressure communication is good, and wells that are completed later, except on the extreme eastern end, had essentially the same reservoir pressure as other wells that have been producing for some time.

Q Now, let me get clear as to how much oil you believe the pool on the flood test area contains. Now, that would be subject to recovery through this water flood?

A This calculation, as we suggested before, our calculations indicate that they are non-recoverable. But, this is



unreasonable. Our saturation at present is essentially what we would expect our final saturation to be after injecting water; and this proposed injection well program is an experimental program entirely to determine if we can recover this oil by some means. Our calculations show that we will not recover any additional oil by this, but this, of course, is unreasonable.

Q You don't have any estimate, then, as to how much oil you might recover?

A No, sir; not additional oil by the injection of 500,000 barrels of water. If we can build an oil bank, and this is, of course, the problem at hand, some additional oil will be recovered But, as to say how much, this, we can't say. If this is successful and we expand this to a full peripheral flood; we would expect at least 50 per cent of primary which would amount to some 6,000,000 barrels of oil if this pilot is successful, and if it is expanded to the full South Area.

Q With regard to your water source, have you been in touch with the State Engineer?

A Yes, sir; we have applied for a water lease on this land. We have submitted an application to the State Engineer. It has been published twice. It will be published on September the 5th for the final time. If there are no protestants, then we should begin our progam immediately thereafter to obtain water from this source. This source has been used, or has been applied for and obtained in the Vacuum Field to the south by Phillips,



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

3

and there were no protestants to that application.

Q Santa Rosa, what kind of water should this be?

A As far as we can determine, this water should be brackish or saline. In verbally, Phillips informs me that water that they tested by wire line test in the Vacuum Field Area a few miles to the south, the chloride content was approximately 8600 parts per million. In this area, we have utilized the logs that were available through this shallow sand which are pretty scarce. We estimate a saline or chloride content of some 10,000 parts per million.

Q Yes, sir.

MR. UTZ: Are there other questions of the witness? Mr. Nutter.

Q (By Mr. Nutter) Mr. Essary, as I understand it, now. this heavy black line that runs around Exhibit 1, is the limit of the area that was studied by the Engineering Committee; is that right?

A Yes, sir. I took this particular plat from a plat that was drawn for the Engineering Committee's work. It was available, and indicated what I wanted to indicate. This line only indicates the area that was studied by the Engineering Committee, but further to the south it indicates the approximate position of the zero isopack line.

Q I was just wondering if that was zero sand thickness around that area?



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

MEXI

NEW

ALBUQUERQUE,

c

1

3-6691

5

A It isn't zero thickness. It is a zero porosity line. This of course, is an estimate, and is based on some dry holes drilled to the south of that that were impermeable and non-productive of any fluids. To the north, as you see, there are wells to the north of this line, and perhaps in this area it ought to be dashed rather than solid.

Q There has been some production outside that line?

A Yes, sir; to the north.

Q All the wells drilled to the south of this line have been dry holes?

A Yes, sir; on the Wolfcamp formation.

Q The line runs diagonally across the pool which is a large broken line --

A Yes, sir.

Q As the division of what you call the North Area and the South Area?

A Yes, sir.

Q Now, the decline curves that were shown on one of the exhibits, being Exhibit 2, are the wells that are south of the heavy line, or the wells that are in Township 15 South, and then the other part being the wells in 16 South?

A No, sir. Township 15 South refers to the total field, only. As carried by the Oil Conservation Commission, the total field would include those wells in Township 15 South, the northern most wells indicated on Exhibit 1. The data accumulated by the



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

CH 3-6691

Engineering Committee, which I used a portion of, a great deal of in this case, consisted only of the production statistics on those wells south of Township 15 South.

Q I see.

And so total field will not conform to Oil Commission A records, and this I wanted to bring up. The South Area does only include those wells south of the area. I might add that the South Area further includes Skelly Hobbs D No. 1, which the Oil Commission -- This is in the Northeast Quarter of the south of the Northwest Quarter of Section 17, Township 16 South, Range 35 East. This well is carried in the Eidson Field by the Oil Commission, and this was included in the South Area.

Q How about that Amarado Well directly east of it?

A No, sir. That was not included. The amount of pay there is essentially zero.

And it is carried by the Commission in the Eidson Pool? Q Yes, sir. That is not carried in this report. A

Q Well now, on the decline here, on Exhibit 2, you show that as of July 1st you have a cumulative production in the South Area of 10.7 million barrels.

A Yes, sir.

Q Now, this 1.376 that you are estimating would be on primary recovery without the addition of water injection?

A Yes, sir. This entirely represents the principal performance of the field.



PAGE 29

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

MEXICO

NEW

ALBUQUERQUE,

3-6691 Đ

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

3-6691

3

And a primary ultimate of 12 1/4 million barrels? 0 Yes, sir. This is somewhat higher than the Engineering Α Committee estimated some year and a half ago. The field appears to be performing slightly better than what they anticipated; but the best estimate now would indicate 12 1/4 million barrels of water ultimate in the South Area only.

Q Now, what was the basis of the Engineering Committee increasing their estimate of reserves to 31.9 million barrels?

This was an arbitrary increase. The people on the A Committee felt that it was unreasonable to injection water and not recover any additional oil. However, all calculations indicated that primary residual oil saturation after primary would be less than what we could get after injected water and, of course, since this was unreasonable and they assumed that perhaps we don't know all there is to know about this reservoir, we might be as much, say, as 20 per cent in error, or even throw our volumetrics and our material balance figures not within reasonable limits. So, as an arbitrary figure for purposes of discussion and analysis we arbitrarily increased the stock tank barrels of oil in place by 20 per cent.

ALBUQUERQUE,

MEXICO

NEW

Q It was a 20 per cent factor?

Yes, sir; a 20 per cent factor. And then they conducted A the water flood calculations. The idea was that if we are 20 per cent off, would it still be profitable. If we were 20 per cent off, it would make only a 75 per cent profit on the total project,



and would only result in 2.4, I believe I said, million barrels of oil to be recovered in addition to primary.

Q Did the Engineering Committee have a figure in their volumetric calculation of original oil in place per acre foot?

A I believe they have that; yes, sir. I think that was 250 barrels per. I'd have to look that up.

Q I just wondered if they had used an acre foot calculation which, if that were in error, would explain the differential as far as the volumetric calculations of reserves.

A Yes, sir.

Q But there was more or less conformity by material base? A Yes, sir. As I stated, it was confirmed in the South Area the volumetrics indicated 27.9 million stock tank barrels, and the material balance indicated 25.5, somewhat less than the 27.9. So the Engineering Committee decided that since this was a close agreement, and they didn't know which was the more valid to figure, they averaged the two and used 26.6.

Q It would appear, in view of the Committee increasing the reserves to 31.9, that maybe volumetric was closer than material balance?

A That would seem so; yes, sir. In a reservoir this large, of course, one per cent difference in porosity would result in quite a large volume of oil. Further, the water saturation was determined by capillary pressure curves only, and it was estimated at 25 per cent. This corresponds to the very fine porosity in a



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc. PHONE CH 3-6691
PHONE CH 3-6691PHONE CH 3-6691
PHONE C
sample with 9.8 porosity.

Q Is there any evidence at all of any water driving in this pool, or is it solution gas driving it entirely?

A No, sir. We have water, primarily, on the Shell ETA Lease to the west end of the field. This is in Section 8, Township 10 South, Range 35 East. This area represents the only area producing significant amounts of water.

Q Those per cents are relatively higher; are they not?

A Those are indicated on Exhibit 1 as the middle figure. Now, the Eidson Field, which geologists feel produces from the equivalent stratographic interval, which is immediately to the west of the Townsend Field production, significant quantities of water, and this does have an oil-water contact. However, none was encountered in the Townsend Field.

Q I note that in the extreme east end of this field some of the wells are currently producing at relatively high rates. Is this due to a better quality of pay, or just what is the situation there?

A This is the result of more recent development. These, the saturation figures, of course, would be higher and the reservoir pressure would be slightly higher than in the main part of the Fairway.

Q Well now, the bottom hole pressure that you mentioned earlier being 400 pounds, I believe it was, the average for the entire south end of the field.



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

3-669

5

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

MEXICO

MSN

ALBUQUERQUE

PHONE CH 3-6691

A Unfortunately, many of the wells are either on pump or in condition such as to make it undesirable or impossible to obtain bottom hole pressure data. This 400-pound figure is based upon the Engineering Committee report of May, I believe. There were only three wells in the Fairway which had bottom hole pressure data. If you notice on Exhibit 2, the bottom hole pressure declines. MR. SETH: I believe that is 3 probably.

THE WITNESS: This one here. You notice that the last 3 points on this curve are aridmetic bottom hole pressures for the South Area. Some time after approximately the end of the Engineering Committee's work, many of the wells went on pump or were shut-in, and consequently aerially weighted bottom hole pressure was not too meaningful since there were so many blank spots in it; and this is only an approximate bottom hole pressure.

Q Well now, on arriving at your primary ultimate on Exhibit 2, you come up with 12 1/4 million, which would correspond to a 200-pound pressure on Exhibit 3. Is not what you were doing, taking pressure down to the 200-pounds?

A Not necessarily. This particular field seems to be producing quite well. Some well that, perhaps there is some gravity segregation in this, you don't know, but the permeability is such that we expect the pressure to be somewhat less than the anticipated. But 200 pounds abandonment pressure would be a reasonable pressure, and this does confirm this Exhibit 2, does comply with the statistics.



Q	How	about	GOR
---	-----	-------	-----

A The GOR at present is approximately 6,000-to-1 total field. They are quite high in various parts of the field. I have those available, but we find that the, in recent months the structural higher wells have exhibited some tendency to be higherratio wells. This was not true originally. It appeared that the high gas saturation areas were independent of the structure. However, those that are higher on structure do have a higher gasoline ratio.

Q As a general rule, are those higher ratios due to a decrease in the amount of oil produced and the oil production remaining relatively constant?

A This, I did not investigate in preparation for this. This, I think, the Committee has not met on this, but I and others feel at present there is some segregation of goods in the reservoir.

Q You think there is a gas cap in the reservoir at the present time?

A I think there is at least a possibility that we are now having some minor amounts of gas segregation, and possibly secondary gas forming in the higher structural positions.

Q Well now, what will be your plan in the event that this pilot project works to conduct a peripheral flood around the south edge of the pool near this zero porosity line.

A This, of course, would have to be determined after we

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

MEXICO

NEW

ALBUQUERQUE,

3-6691

Đ

observe the response of the injection well. But the present thinking is that we would institute a peripheral flood. A regular five spot flood would possibly prevent some difficulties such as the extremely thick pay zone in the north part of the Fairway above the shale line. We feel that we can flood the entire field quite well, probably, by injecting along the zero isopack line; yes, sir.

Well now, we have the isopack for only a small area, Q here, but I notice that some of the wells do have considerable thickness. What is the thickness when you get up into the Fairway?

The net pay, now -- if you would refer back to the A cross-section, the north south cross-section, it perhaps might be more significant than the actual net pay. The net pay figure had not been isopacked. However, I don't know just how much that does mean because the intervals of pay are not necessarily correlatable from well to well. Exhibit 6 shows the thickening of the gross producing zone. And I think this is more significant and, of course, a peripheral flood in this injection well would be underneath the shale, and then after flooding out this section under the shale, then the thicker part of the reservoir would come under response flooding.

Do you think it will be possible to flood the upper Q portion of the pay near the line where the pay wedges out by flooding under the pay, down south?



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

1699-E

Đ

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

A Yes, sir; I do. Of course, we cannot correlate porosity from well to well. We get cases that apparently there are zones of porosity in the top and bottom half of the wells, but to correlate them and try to pick out zones of porosity and trace them throughout the field on log data, it cannot be done, and we feel that within this producing zone that there is variable permeability, and our present feeling is that we will be able to flood the entire Fairway from injecting into these wells under the shale.

Q The entire pay?

A Yes, sir.

Q North of the shale wedge?

A Yes, sir. We do feel that we will be able to do that. Of course, if this proceeds like it ought to, we would probably, I am sure, on this peripheral flood as we flooded out offsetting wells, we would transfer our injection program to these offset wells, and this would move eventually, and we would be eventually injecting wells into it.

Q Would you have, then, a peripheral flood along the north line, also?

A You mean the injected lines?

Q Do you mean by wells in the North Area, or injecting by the southern wells?

A Excuse me. I mean the north part of the Fairway, not into it. As far as we can determine now, and also based on the



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

MEXICO

NEV

ALBUQUERQUE

CH 3-6691

performance of our injection program, we are using one of these North Area wells as a disposal well. This is indicated on Section 8, in the Northeast of the Northeast of Section 8, Township 35 East; Township 16 South, Range 35 East, Shell State ETA No. 1. We are injecting water into this well, and we are getting indication of the injectivity of this North Area.

Q Are you injecting into the Wolfcamp pay?

A Yes, sir; and this was a depleted well that was abandoned, and we obtained permission and did inject into the Wolfcamp pay. We have no response in offset wells, and the pressure is now becoming quite excessive, and we do have an indication of what we might expect were we to try secondary recovery in the North Arca. But, as I stated previously, inter-well communication is quite poor. Offsetting pressures are meaningless, and in the 72-hour build up, those wells in the North Area are not completely built up, where as those in the South Area have been built up in 72 hours.

Q Well, in the event the flood is carried out field wide, would any effort be made to communitize the field?

A No, sir. It would be a unit of all the operators who are now working together, even on this pilot flood. Each is sharing his own costs, with the exception of one or two who are such a small interest and so remote that they didn't feel they could join. But, 10 of the major operators, which are indicated on Exhibit 7, I believe, the tabulation, those operators are 100



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

MEXICO

NEW

3-6591

3

9 .

per cent behind this project, and they would be expected to join in the full-scale flood. They anticipate that they would join.

Q Mr. Essary, would you plan to, on initial flooding, to use any produced water for this injection, or use only Santa Rosa water?

A Of course, it would be more efficient to just take water from one source, in the Santa Rosa if we obtain permission from the State Engineer, with no protestants, to use this water, and if it will provide the required 1,000 barrels per day, then we would expect to only use this water. This would minimize our treating and gathering system problems. If this source well were incapable of producing the required amount of water, this could be supplemented, and we had considered supplementing it with the produced water. Now, the bulk of the produced water is produced in Section 8, 16 South, 35 East, which is quite close to the source well. And this could be tied into the line thereafter for treatment and injected into the injection well with probably a minimum of surface installation. The present production of water from the Townsend Field in this Area is of the magnitude of 300 barrels per day, and if we could obtain 500 more from the Santa Rosa, we would have our 1,000 barrels per day for injection.

Q So, even if the Santa Rosa should fail to meet your demands, you would have enough water to complete the project?

A Yes, sir.

Q Has any test been made of the Santa Rosa water to



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

NEW MEXICO

ALBUQUERQUE,

CH 3-6691

determine whether it is compatible with the formation water?

A No, sir. Of course, this would be accomplished prior to injecting the water into the reservoir, but we have no Santa Rosa water available for the compatibility tests in this area.

MR. NUTTER: I believe that is all.

MR. UTZ: Are there other questions of the witness? If not, the witness may be excused. Are there other statements to be made?

MR. SETH: That is all we have.

MR. UTZ: The case will be taken under advisement.

MR. BRATTON: Harvey Bratton of Harvey, Dow & Hinkle on behalf of Humble Oil & Refining Company. Our connection with the matter is in connection with the source water. As has been stated, the source is in Township 16 South, Range 35 East, Section 16, and Shell is in the process of obtaining a commercial water lease on this area. Humble has an existing State Oil & Gas Lease on the Section 16 source section, and while it has no objection to Shell's utilizing the water for this project, it does want to make it clear, so that there will be no misunderstanding, that under Humble State's Oil & Gas Lease, it has the right to use water from the lands, and it does not waive any right it may have to use that water in connection with any present or future operation. I realize, of course, that the right to utilize water is not a concern or a question of this Commission, not within its jurisdiction, but we just wanted to state, so that there would be



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

MEXI

NEW

ALBUQUERQUE

3-6691

3

no misunderstanding.

MR. UTZ: Mr. Bratton, is Humble participating in this pilot water injection project?

MR. BRATTON: Yes, sir. They have been an active member of the Committee right along; have they not?

MR. ESSARY: Yes, sir.

MR. UTZ: Yes, sir.

Are there other statements? The case will be taken under advisement.

(Whereupon the Hearing of Case 2359 was concluded.)

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

STATE OF NEW MEXICO)) ss. COUNTY OF BERNALILLO)

I, MICHAEL P. HALL, Court Reporter, do hereby certify that the foregoing and attached transcript of proceedings before the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico, is a true and correct record to the best of my knowledge, skill, and ability.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have affixed my hand and notary seal this 30th day of August 1961.

ichael

Court Reporter - Notary Public

My Commission expires: June 20, 1965

> I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a complete record of the proceedings in the Examiner hearing of Gass No. Z.359, heard by me on (149.36), 19.61. New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

PHONE CH 3-6691

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION P. O. BOX 871 SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

July 2359

December 18, 1962

Whell Oil Company P.O. Ben 1858 Rosvell, New Mexico

Attaction: Mr. R. L. Rankin

Centlemen:

Reference is made to your letter of December 5, 1962 wherein you advise that it is the desire of Shell Gil Company to change the senses of injection unter for the Filot Materflood project in the Toursend Wolfcomp Pool from the Santa Ross formation to the Opsilals formation further that you wish to increase the injection rate from approximately 1900 BMPB to approximately 2000 BMPB.

Aubject to Shell Oil Company obtaining a water appropriation from the State Engineer Office for the Ogallala formation, the Oil Conservation Commission has no objection and hereby approved the use of said water in said quantities for the Filet Saterflood project.

Vary truly yours,

A. L. Porter, Jr. Secretary Director

ALL'/DER/dag

es: Oil Conservation Commission Nobbe, New Mexico

> State Engineer Office Santa Fe, New Mexico



SHELL OIL COMPANY

Roswell, New Mexico

December 5, 1962

Subject: Townsend Wolfcamp Field Lea County, New Mexico Pilot Waterflood Project <u>NMOCC Order No. R-2053</u> Change of Water Source and Injection Rate

New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission P. O. Box 871 Santa Fe, New Mexico

Gentlemen:

Pursuant to telephone conversation of December 3, 1962, between your Mr. D. S. Nutter and Mr. R. L. Essary, Shell Oil Company, we hereby present notice that we are applying to the State Engineer's Office for an appropriation of fresh water from the Ogallala formation for use in the subject pilot waterflood project. This appropriation is necessary in order to institute the following changes:

- 1. Change the source of injection water from the Santa Rosa (saline water) formation to the Ogallala (fresh water) formation. This change is required since the Santa Rosa source well has proved to have a capacity of only 500 BWPD, which is not considered adequate to provide the best probability of forming a satisfactory oil bank in the high permeability, substantially depleted Townsend Wolfcamp reservoir. Further, the time required to complete the project would be excessive at this low rate. Development of other satisfactory sources of water to supplement the present system is not considered economically attractive.
- 2. Increase the injection rate in the single well injection system to 2000 BWPD. In testimony, we indicated our intent to inject approximately 1000 BWPD from the Santa Rosa. During the first year of the pilot waterflood project we have injected only approximately 85,000 barrels of water. No adverse effects should occur due to the higher injection rate and the project life will be shortened considerably, which is particularly desirable in view of the late stage of depletion of the Townsend Field.

Secure of the Carlor

New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission

We understand from the aforementioned telephone conversation that these changes will be satisfactory to the NMOCC and this letter is presented as an information copy for your files. Please contact our Roswell office should any questions arise in regard to the foregoing.

Yours very truly,

R. L. Kanken

R. L. Rankin Division Production Manager GOVERNOR Edwin L. Mechem Chairman

State of New Mexico Gil Conservation Commission



STATE GEOLOGIST A. L. PORTER, JR. SECRETARY - DIRECTOR

P. O. BOX 971 Santa Fe

September 7, 1961

Re: Mr. Oliver Seth Seth, Montgomery, Federici & Andrews Box 828 Santa Fe, New Mexico

Case No.	2359				
Order No.	R-2053				
Applicant:					
Shell Oil	Company				

Dear Sir:

D COMMISSIONER

JOHNNY WALKER

MEMBER

Enclosed herewith are two copies of the above-referenced Commission order recently entered in the subject case.

Very truly yours,

223

A. L. PORTER, Jr. Secretary-Director

ir/

Section Section

Carbon copy of order also sent to:

Hobbs OCC _____ Artesia OCC _____ Aztec OCC _____ OTHER (Byram)

tesi 235

J. O. SETH A. K. MONTGOMERY OLIVER SETH WH. FEDERICI FRANK ANDREWS FRED C. HANNAHS GEORGE A. GRAHAM, JR. SETH, MONTGOMERY, FEDERICI & ANDREWS

ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 301 DON GASPAR AVENUE SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

POST OFFICE BOX 828

August 14, 1961

New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Attention: Mr. A. L. Porter, Jr. Secretary-Director

> Re: Shell Oil Company Application for Pilot Water Flood Project Townsend Wolfcamp Field Lea County

Gentlemen:

We have heretofore submitted an application on behalf Shell Oil Company for permission to initiate a pilot water flood test as indicated above.

We now have some additional data which we would like to furnish the Commission as part of our application.

Please find enclosed herewith a plat showing the location of the proposed injection well and the location of other wells within a radius of two miles of the proposed injection well. This plat also shows the lease ownership of the adjoining acreage.

The Injection Well is the Texas Pacific Coal and Oil Company State of New Mexico J#2 Well located 2310 feet from the south and west section lines of Section 10, Township 16 S. Range 35 E.

We have also enclosed with this letter a log of the proposed injection well prepared by Haliburton Oil Well Cementing Company. The casing program generally for this injection well is as follows:

13 3/8" @ 353' cemented w/400 sx (circulated) 8 5/8", 32#, H&J @ 4660' cemented w/2500 sx (circulated) 5 1/2", 17#, J&N @ 10,640' cemented w/300 sx neat cement.

New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission - Page Two

August 14, 1961

It is proposed that the injection well be reperforated at 10,552 feet to 10,557 feet, from 10,574 feet to 10,581 feet and also from 10,586 feet to 10,592 feet. It is intended to inject approximately 1000 barrels of water per day into the Wolf Camp Formation through these perforations in order to evaluate the water flood potential of the reservoir. The injection water will be a saline water from the Santa Rosa Formation and to be produced approximately 1500 feet in depth from an existing well located in the $NW_{\frac{1}{2}}NW_{\frac{1}{2}}$ of Section 16, Township 16 South, Range 35 East.

If there is any further data that is needed prior to the hearing, please advise us.

Very truly yours, SHELL OIL COMPANY By

OS:wcl Enclosures

÷.

(in 3.59

SETH, MONTGOMERY, FEDERICI & ANDREWS ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 301 DON GASPAR AVENUE SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

July 26, 1961

POST OFFICE BOX 828 TELEPHONE YU 3-7315

Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

> Re: Application of Shell Oil Company for Pilot Water Flood Test - Townsend Wolfcamp Field (south area) Lea County.

Gentlemen:

J. O. SETH A. K. MONTGOMERY

OLIVER SETH

FRANK ANDREWS

FRED C. HANNAHS

GEORGE A. GRAHAM, JR.

Application is hereby made for permission to undertake a pilot water flood test in the south area of the Townsend Wolfcamp Field. It is planned that the test commence with a single injection well, and this well to be Texas Pacific Coal & Oil State J No. 2, located in the NELSWL of Section 10, Township 16 South, Range 35 East, N.M.P.M.

The injection initially would be through perforations in the Wolfcamp intervals 10,552 to 10,557 feet and 10,574 to 10,581 feet and 10,586 to 10,592 feet.

The test will be carried out in cooperation with other operators and will be to evaluate the feasibility of a peripheral water flood.

It would be appreciated if this matter could be set down for hearing.

Yours truly,

SHELL OIL COMPANY

By Oliver S Attorney

OS:eas

4 No

Case 2359 Heard 8-30 6! Rec. 8-31-61 1. Shant Shells request for a pilot water floods in the Downsend - Wolfcamps oil Port. E. She injection well shall be the Dexas Parific Coal + Oil = Stale "# 7, 2310/ Saw lines sec. 10-165-35E. which well Ahad he cared as follows: 13 3/8, 8 35 3, cemental \$\$\$00000 Circulated 8 88, C 4660, " Quiculated 51/2 @ 10,620 " W/300 mp. Thus A.



THE PURE OIL COMPANY

O. BOX 671 • MIDLAND TEXAS

August 25, 1961

New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission P. O. Box 871 Santa Fe, New Mexico

Gentlemen:

The Pure Oil Company as an operator in the Townsend Wolfcamp Field, Lea County, New Mexico is in agreement and supports Shell Oil Company's application for a single well pilot water flood test.

Yours very truly,

THE PURE OIL COMPANY

Comup ¥

Care File

- a. j. . - 125

J. R. Murphey Area Petroleum Engineer

JRM:jcv

cc: Shell Oil Company P. O. Box 1858 Roswell, New Mexico Attention: Mr. R. L. Rankin

T-15-S)

	SOUTH AREA		NORTH AREA		TOTAL FIELD	
	PRODUCING WELLS (LESS THAN 200 BOPM)	SHUT IN WELLS	PRODUCING WELLS (LESS THAN 200 BOPM)	SHUT IN WELLS	PRODUCING WELLS (LESS THAN 200 BOPM)	3 SHUT IN <u>WELLS</u>
*AUSTRAL OIL COMPANY, INC.	9 (1)	-	5 (1)	-	14 (2)	-
**BRUNSON & LAUGHLIN	2	-	-	-	2	-
*CABOT CORPORATION	6 (2)		2 (1)	-	8 (3)	-
*CHRISIMANN & WELBORN	-	-	2 (1)	3	2 (1)	3
*GULF OIL CORPORATION	2 (1)	-	1	-	3 (1)	-
*HUMBLE OIL & REFINING COMPANY	4 (1)	3	-	1	h (1)	4
M. A. MACHRIS	-	-	2	_	2	-
MOBIL OIL COMPANY	-	-	1	-	1	-
*PAN AMERICAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION	3	-	-	l	3	1
*PURE OIL COMPANY	4 (3)	2	-	-	4 (3)	2
*SHELL OIL COMPANY	17 (1)	1	6 (5)	l	23 (6)	2
SIMMONS, MARKHAM & CONE	1 (1)	2	-	-	1 (1)	2
SKELLY OIL COMPANY	· 1	-	-	-	1	
SOUTHERN PETROLEUM EXPLORATION COMPANY	3 (1)	1	-	- .	3 (1)	SIA
SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY	-	-	l	-	1	KA
*SUPERIOR OIL COMPANY	1	-	1 (1)	-	2 (1) 🗸	
*TEXAS PACIFIC COAL & OIL	14	3		-	4	3
TIDEWATER OIL COMPANY	-	-	1 (1)	-	1 (1)	
UTEX EXPLORATION COMPANY, INC.		_	2 (2)	<u>1</u>	2 (2)	1
TOTALS	57 (11)	12	24 (12)	7	81 (23)	19
	69 mills					

*Companies participating in Pilot Flood Project. **Non-participating but agreeable to project.

بيو منظر أ

Shell Oil Co. Exhibit #4 Case 2359





Legend:

Scale 1" = 1000' Contour Interval 20'

Well No.

🗯 (Shut-In Well)

• Net feet of pay

NT2

Shell Oil Co. Exhibit #7 Case 2359





TOWNSEND FIELD LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO PILOT WATER FLOOD WATER SOURCE WELL HUMBLE STATE AL-1 NW/4 NW/4 SECTION 16-168-35E



WORK PROGRAM

- 1. Remove surface cement plug and clean cut to 2000'.
- 2. Run CR/N w/CCL from 2000' to surface.
- 3. Set CIBP 100' below interval to be perforated.
- 4. Perforate selected intervals between 1450' and 1550' (Santa Rosa sand) as determined from GR/N Survey.
- 5. Run 2" tubing with packer and swab test.
- 6. If necessary, treat via 2" tubing below packer with 20,000 gallons water containing 1# sand per gallon and fluid loss additive. Use 2000 HHP and maintain maximum injection rates. Do not exceed 2000 psi surface pressure.
- 7. Swab test.
- 8. If results satisfactory, pull tubing and packer, check for sand fill, and clean out if necessary.
- 9. Run 2" tubing with Reda pump and place on production.

Shell Oil Co. Exhibit ±10 Case 2359



BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION CONSISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

IN THE MATTER OF THE MEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION CONCISSION OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

> CASE NO. 2359 Order No. R-2053

APPLICATION OF SHELL OIL COMPANY FOR A FILOT WATERFLOOD PROJECT IN THE TOWNSEND-WOLFCAMP POOL, LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

OFDER OF THE CONDUSSION

BY THE COMMISSION:

This cause came on for hearing at 9 o'clock a.m., on August 30, 1961, at Santa Fe, New Mexico, before Elvis A. Uts, Examiner duly appointed by the Oil Conservation Commission of New Mexico, hereinafter referred to as the "Commission," in accordance with Rule 1214 of the Commission Rules and Regulations.

NOW, on this 7th., day of September, 1961, the Commission, a quorum being present, having considered the application, the evidence adduced, and the recommendations of the Examiner, Elvis A. Utz, and being fully advised in the premises,

PINDA:

(1) That due public notice having been given as required by law, the Commission has jurisdiction of this cause and the subject matter thereof.

(2) That the applicant, Shell Oil Company, seeks permission to institute a pilot waterflood project in the Townsend-Wolfcamp Fool in an area comprising Section 10, Township 16 South, Range 35 East, HMFM, Lea County, New Mexico, by the injection of water into the Wolfcamp formation in the interval from 10,552 feet to 10,592 feet in Texas Pacific Coal & Oil Company's State "J" Well No. 2, located in the NE/4 SW/4 of said Section 10.

(3) That all of the wells in the pilot waterflood area have reached an advanced state of depletion and may properly be classified as "stripper" wells for this depth. -2-Case No. 2359 Order No. R-2053

ίr.

(4) That the proposed waterflood project should be authorised and should be governed by the provisions of Rule 701 of the Commission Rules and Megulations, including those provisions regarding allocation of allowables and expansion of the project area.

IT IS THEREFORE OFDERED:

(1) That the applicant, Shell Oil Company, is hereby authorized to institute a pilot waterflood project in the Townsend-Wolfcamp Pool in an area comprising Section 10, Township 16 South, Range 35 East, HMPM, Lea County, New Mexico, by the injection of water into Texas Pacific Coal & Oil Company's State "J" Well No. 2, located in the NE/4 SW/4 of said Section 10.

(2) That the operation of the waterflood project shall be governed by the provisions of Rule 701 of the Commission Rules and Regulations, including those provisions regarding allocation of allowables and expansion of the project area.

(3) That monthly progress reports on the waterflood project shall be submitted to the Commission in accordance with Rule 701 and Rule 1119 of the Commission Rules and Regulations.

(4) That jurisdiction of this cause is retained for the entry of such further orders as the Commission may deem necessary.

BOHE at Santa Fe, New Mexico, on the day and year hexeinabove designated.

> STATE OF NEW MEXICO OIL COMSERVATION COMMISSION EDWIN L. MECHEN, Chairman CAUDING E. S. WALKER, Member Of Party, J. A. L. PORTER, Jr., Member & Secretary